
 

COUNTY COMMISSION 
 

Ron Sellers 

District 1 

Member 

Ron Hirst 

District 2 

Chair 

Daniel P. Friesen 

District 3 

Vice-Chair 

Courthouse 

206 W. 1st Avenue 

Hutchinson, KS 67501 

 
 

AGENDA 
Commission Chambers 

Tuesday, April 13, 2021, 9:00 A.M. 
 

I. Call to Order 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and Prayer 

 

III. Welcome and Announcements by Commission Chair 

A. Proclamations 

1. Reno County Crime Victims’ Rights Week received by Thomas Stanton, District Attorney. 

2. Week of the Young Child received by Michael Woods, Kansas Children Service League Family 

Services Supervisor. 

3. Child Abuse Prevention Week received by Michael Woods, Kansas Children Service League Family 

Services Supervisor. 

 

IV. COVID-19 Update 

A. Karla Nichols, Health Director and Karen Hammersmith, Health Officer. 

 

V. Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda.  

Please come forward to the podium, state your name and address and limit your remarks to not more than 5 

minutes per item. 

 

VI. Determine Additions or Revisions to the Agenda  

 

VII. Consent Agenda  

If any Commissioner would like further discussions or explanation of any item they may ask that it be removed 

from the consent agenda for additional consideration. 

A. Vouchers (bills or payments owed by the county or related taxing units). 

B. Reappoint Ray Hemman, Shannon Hauschild, Lacy Stauffacher and Erica Rivera to serve on the Community 

Corrections Advisory Board for a two-year term ending March 2023. 

C. Solid Waste’s purchase of a 2016 Case Tractor from KanEquip at a total cost of $100,000. 

D. Resolution 2021-09 Amending in total Resolution 1995-25 which established maximum weight of vehicles 

traveling on all asphalt county roadways. 

E. Public Works Policy on Oversize – Overweight Haul Loads. 

F. Public Works Policy Revision on Utility Poles and Wireless Support Structures. 

1. Action – Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

  Friesen  Sellers  Hirst 

 

VIII. Business Items 

A. Update on recent fires by Steve Beer, Hutchinson Fire Chief. 

B. Planning Case 2021-02 – A request for a conditional use permit to place a manufactured home at 1002 

N. Obee Road by Mark Vonachen, County Planner. 



 

C. Agreement with Kirkham, Michael & Associates to complete the survey and design plans for 

69th Avenue Bridge 26.70 for replacement over Cow Creek at a lump sum fee of $73,000.00 by 

Don Brittain, Public Works Director. 

D. Agreement with JEO Consulting Group, Inc. To complete the survey and design plans for Wilson Road 

Bridge 25.90 (Willowbrook Entrance) for replacement over Cow Creek at a lump sum fee of 

$103,240.00 by Don Brittain, Public Works Director. 

E. Sheriff Update by Sheriff Darrian Campbell. 

F. Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems Proposed Regulations. 

 

IX. County Administrator Report 

A. Department Reports 

B. Financial Reports 

C. Youth Services Director 

 

X. Executive Session 

A. Executive Session for Attorney Client Privileges for 30 minutes with no legal binding action to take place. 

 

XI. County Commission Report/Comments 

 

XII. Adjournment 



shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #03A1



PROCLAMATION 
 
WHEREAS ,  the Early Childhood Council  and other local organizations, 

in conjunction with the National Association for the Education of Young 
Children, are celebrating the Week of the Young Child, April 12 t h  –  17th, 
2021;  and  

 
WHEREAS ,  these organizations are working to improve early learning 

opportunities, which are crucial  to the growth and development of young 
children, and to building better futures for everyone in Reno County ;  and  

 
WHEREAS ,  all  young children and their famil ies across t he country 

and in Reno County deserve access to high-quality early education and 
care; and  

 
WHEREAS ,  in recognizing and supporting the people, programs and 

policies that are committed to high -quality early childhood education as 
the right choice for kids . 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, We, the Board of County Commissioners of Reno 

County, Kansas ,  do hereby proclaim the week of April  12 t h  –  17 t h,  2021, as   
 

“Week of the Young Child” 
 
and encourage all  citizens to work to make a good investment in 

early childhood in Reno County.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WE HEREUNTO SET OUR HANDS AND C AUSE 

THE seal of Reno County, Kansas to be affixed this 13th day of April  2021. 
 
 

BOARD OF RENO COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: 
 
 

        
Ron Hirst, Chairman 

 
 

        
Daniel P. Friesen, Member 

 
 

        
Ron Sellers, Member 

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
       
Donna Patton, Reno County Clerk 

 

 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #03A2



 

 

PROCLAMATION 
 

 
WHEREAS, children are key to the state’s future success, prosperity and quality of life 

and, while children are our most valuable resource, they are also our most vulnerable; and 
 
WHEREAS, children have a right to be safe and to be provided an opportunity to thrive, 

learn and grow; and 
 
WHEREAS, child abuse and neglect can be prevented by supporting and strengthening 

Kansas’ families, thus preventing the far-reaching effects of maltreatment, providing the 
opportunity for children to develop healthy, trusting family bonds; and consequently, building 
the foundations of communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, we must come together as partners so that the voices of our children are 

heard by all and we are as a community extending a helping hand to children and families in 
need; and 

 
WHEREAS, by providing a safe and nurturing environment for our children, free of 

violence, abuse and neglect, we can ensure that Kansas’ children will grow to their full potential 
as the next generation of leaders, helping to secure the future of this state and nation; and 

 
WHEREAS, child abuse and neglect can be reduced by making sure each family has the 

support they need to raise their children in a healthy environment. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, we the Board of County Commissioners of Reno County, Kansas do 

hereby proclaim the month of April 2021 to be  
 
 

“CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH” 
 
 

and call upon all citizens, community agencies, religious organizations, medical facilities, and 
businesses to increase their participation in our efforts to prevent child abuse, thereby 
strengthening the communities in which we live. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and cause the seal of Reno 
County, Kansas, to be affixed this  13th  day of April 2021.      

 
      

BOARD OF RENO COUNTY COMMSSIONERS: 
 

        
Ron Hirst, Chairperson 

 
 

        
Daniel P. Friesen, Member 

 
 

        
Ron Sellers, Member 

 
 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 

        

Donna Patton, Reno County Clerk 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #03A3



shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07B



shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07C





























shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07D





































shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07E

















shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #07F

















shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #08B



























































shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #08C





















shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #08D





















 

1 

 

                                                                              
            RENO COUNTY 

  Sheriff:          Darrian Campbell                           Sheriff’s Office 
                                                          Undersheriff:         Shawn McHaley                          206 West First Ave. 
                                                                                                                 Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5298 
                                                                              (620) 694-2735 Office (620) 694-2702 fax 
                                                                           TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777  
 

 

 

 March 2021 BOCC Update 04/02/2021 
 

Staffing changes or issues: 

The Reno County Sheriff’s Office is staffed at 101 personnel; 85 full time sworn Deputies, 12 civilian support 

staff and 4 part-time Offender registry personnel. 

 

Patrol 

Detectives 

Correctional Facility: 

 Deputies 

 Nurse 

 

 

 

Budget YTD summary: 

The total agency budget is $6,611,844.00.  

Expenditures compared to where we should be. 

 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns: 

 

2022 Budget talks 

Courthouse entrance/Construction 

Firearms Range Agreement 

 

 

 

Darrian L. Campbell 

Reno County Sheriff 

 

 

* These are talking points and the brief will be given in person.

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #08E



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-1 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

Sections: 
23-101 Purpose and Intent 
23-102 Applicability 
23-103 Definitions 
23-104 Circumstances Requiring Application of the CWECS 
23-105 Content of a Development Plan and Plan of Operation 
23-106 Documents, Plans, Studies, Reports, Other Permits 
23-107 Additional Required Topics to be Included in Submittals 
23-108 Special Regulations Applicable for a Conditional Use Permit for a CWECS 
23-109 Agreements and Requirements 
23-110 Requirements for a Zoning Permit 
23-111 Construction Requirements 
 
23-101 Purpose and Intent: 
 
The purpose of this Article is to ensure a regulatory means of facilitating wind energy development of a 
Commercial Wind Energy Conversion System within the unincorporated portion of Reno County having 
zoning jurisdiction by providing reasonable requirements for the submittal of proposals for the establishment 
of a CWECS to provide adequate information to the officials of Reno County charged with the responsibility 
to review said proposals. 
 
To the extent there are conflicts between the requirements of Article 23 and other provisions of the Reno 
County Zoning Regulations, it is intended that the requirements of Article 23 shall control the interpretation 
of the Zoning Regulations. 
 
23-102 Applicability: 
 
All CWECS development within this Article, as described herein, shall comply with the standards and 
procedures of this Article and those required for a Conditional Use Permit as stated in Articles 8 and 15.  It 
shall be understood the "timeline" restrictions in Articles 8 and 15 are not applicable to a CWECS project 
because of the overall time for the development and construction.   
 
Placement of a small Wind Energy Conversion System shall be permitted as an accessory use as defined in 
Article 9-102(4) and Article 9-103(4) of the Zoning Regulations. 
 
Article 20-104(2) of the Zoning Regulations shall not be used to modify, adjust, or change any requirement 
under Article 23. 
 
23-103 Definitions:   
 
1. Commercial Wind Energy Conversion System means an electrical generating facility that operates by 

converting the kinetic energy of wind into electrical energy and is comprised of one or more turbines 
and accessory facilities, including but not limited to, ancillary operational meteorological towers, 
overhead and underground communication and electrical transmission lines, transformers, substations, 
roads, administrative and operations buildings, turbines, supervisory control and data acquisition 
(SCADA) facilities, and other associated facilities. The energy may be used on-site or distributed into 
the electrical grid.  A CWECS is further defined as producing 100kW of electricity or greater. 

 
2. Participating landowner means an individual, a group of individuals, a trust, or other entity owning 

real property who or which has signed a lease agreement with the owner or operator of a commercial 

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #08F



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-2 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

wind energy conversion system project for the placement of turbines, other project components on the 
real property, or otherwise agrees to participate in the wind energy project. 

 
3. Non-participating landowner means an individual, group of individuals, a trust, or other entity owning 

real property who or which has not signed a lease agreement with the owner or operator of a 
commercial wind energy conversion system project for the placement of turbines or other project 
components on the real property. 

 
4. Qualified third-party company means an independent individual or entity that is not owned by, 

operated by, or a subsidiary of the current owner or subsequent owners of a CWECS or a property 
owner within the project boundary, who is qualified to perform the required analysis and is agreed 
upon by the applicant and county commission. 

 
5. A turbine means the total structural components used to convert the wind's kinetic energy into 

electrical energy.   
 

6. The total height of the turbine means measuring from the elevation of the ground surface at the base 
of the turbine up to the height of the turbine measured at the highest point of the blade system during 
its rotation. 

 
7. Accessory building shall have the same meaning as defined in Article 1-104(4) of the Zoning 

Regulations. 
 
8. Principal building shall mean a primary residential structure.  A principal residential structure shall 

not include a guest house or buildings whose purpose is to store equipment, commodities, or animals. 
 

23-104 Circumstances Requiring Application of the CWECS Article: 
 
The following circumstances require application of this Article and sets standards and procedures within the 
designated Article: 
 
1. An application for a Conditional Use Permit for a CWECS; or 

 
2. An application for a conditional use permit for an expansion of a CWECS beyond the area previously 

approved by a conditional use permit. 
 

3. Each application for a conditional use permit shall include a written agreement by the Applicant to 
reimburse the County for all unusual and extraordinary expenses incurred by the County to process 
the application and conduct the public hearing. 

  
23-105 Content of a Development Plan and Plan of Operation: 
 
The information listed below shall be submitted with the conditional use permit application.  It shall be the 
duty of the Zoning Administrator to determine when a conditional use permit application is complete and ready 
to schedule for a public hearing.  All information listed below shall be submitted prior to the Planning 
Commission making a recommendation.  The Planning Commission or Board of County Commissioners may 
require additional information not listed below. 
 
1. A project map drawn at a scale of not less than 1” = 2,000’ showing the additional information as 

outlined in this Article 23-105 including the following: 
 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-3 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

A. All development plan requirements under Article 8-103 of the Zoning Regulations. 
 
B. Project boundary and the total acreage. 
 
C. The center point of each turbine and MET tower with Latitude/Longitude Coordinates. 
 
D. The location of the operation and maintenance facility of the project or any other facility to 

serve the project. 
 
E. The location of any temporary assembly areas or other areas used for the construction of the 

CWECS. 
 
F. All public roads, access roads, and temporary access roads serving the project. 
 
G. The project shall indicate compliance with all requirements contained in Article 23. 
 
H. A secondary project map drawn at a scaled of not greater than 1” = 600’ that shows each 

individual turbine site, and which also includes all other relevant information required by this 
Article. 

 
I. Land identified as a special flood hazard area. 
 
J. Land identified by the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism or U.S. Fish and 

Wildlife Service as a wetland, native vegetation area, wildlife habitat, or critical species habitat 
worthy of special consideration or protection. 

 
K. All required setbacks and requirements around land uses as described in Article 23. 

 
2. A general project introduction and plan of operation that describes the total number of proposed 

turbines, alternate turbine sites, total height of the turbines from the ground to the tip of the blade, 
meteorological towers, operation and maintenance facility, temporary construction sites, number of 
participating property owners, total acreage of the project, miles of new access roads, anticipated 
construction schedule, and other relevant information as deemed appropriate by the applicant or as 
required by county staff, the Planning Commission, or Board of County Commissioners. 

 
23-106 Documents, Plans, Studies, Reports, Other Permits: 
 
The information listed below shall be submitted with the conditional use permit application and used to 
evaluate compliance with the Zoning Regulations.  The Planning Commission or Board of County 
Commissioners may require additional information not listed in Article 23-106 or conduct separate studies for 
the purpose of evaluating the proposed conditional use permit.  Payment for the information cost may be 
negotiated in the Development Agreement. 
 
1. Documentation acceptable to the County that the Applicant has signed lease agreements currently in 

effect to use the land in the manner requested.  The Applicant may redact sensitive financial or 
confidential information. 

 
2. List of adjacent property owners within the then current minimum zoning regulation requirement of 

the subject property boundary proposed to receive a turbine(s), MET tower(s), the operation and 
maintenance facility, or a temporary use associated with the project.  The list of adjacent property 
owners shall be from the subject property boundary, not from the lease area.  The list of adjacent 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-4 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

property owners shall be sent electronically, be in an Excel Spreadsheet format and contain the 
property owner’s name, mailing address of the owner, physical address of the property, and parcel 
identification number (PIN). 
 

3. An expected economic impact report to the County which assumes the proposed project is approved 
and constructed as proposed on the conditional use permit application.  The report shall be prepared 
by an independent third-party company or four-year college institution. 

 
4. An acoustic study prepared by an independent third-party company.  The study shall include maps and 

charts that indicate the anticipated sound level expected at each principal building and explain the 
methodology used to compute the anticipated sound levels. 

 
5. A shadow flicker study prepared by an independent third-party company.  The study shall include 

maps and charts that indicate the anticipated amount of shadow flicker expected at each principal 
building and explains the methodology used to compute the anticipated shadow flicker.  The study 
shall show the anticipated number of hours per year a principal building will receive shadow flicker, 
the time of day, and time of year. 
 

6. A written document from the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism (KDWPT) or its 
successor indicating the applicant has contacted the agency regarding the proposed CWECS.  The 
document should state KDWPT has been contacted by the applicant regarding the proposal and has 
reviewed or is currently reviewing the proposal for any concerns regarding the operations of KDWPT. 
 

7. All setback, noise or shadow flicker waivers are to be executed by all owners of an affected parcel.  
All such waivers shall be notarized and submitted with the conditional use permit application. 
 

8. A report shall be conducted by a third-party company on existing environment concerns and filed with 
the conditional use permit application.  The report should include, but not be limited to, information 
regarding: 

A. Wildlife habitats, native prairie grass, and vegetation information relevant to the project site. 
 

B. An avian study to include all types of Eagles, Whooping Cranes, and other sensitive species 
as affected by the project.  The plan should include a discussion on bird migration and the 
potential for bird strikes. 

 
C. Flora - vegetation species, threatened species (officially listed), critical habitat and habitat 

conditions for such species relevant to the project site. 
 

D. Fauna - species, habitat assessment, threatened species (officially listed), migratory species, 
critical habitat, and habitat conditions for such species. 

 
E. Geo-conservation - sites of geo-conservation significance listed on the state or national 

database. 
 

F. Special flood hazard areas and wetland areas identified on the FSA Wetland Map. 
 

23-107 Additional Required Topics to be Included in Submittals: 
 
In addition to the requirements of Article 8, an application for a CWECS project shall address specific issues 
related with the project that include, but are not limited to, the following: 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-5 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

1. In addition to strict conformance to all performance standards and development plan requirements as 
detailed in the Reno County Zoning Regulations, the development plan shall address the following: 

 
A. The "boundary" of the project shall be the properties included within the "leased lands" on 

which the CWECS is proposed to be constructed. The specific siting of individual components 
of the CWECS, including turbines, supporting structures, and all other aspects which entail a 
complete CWECS as recognized within the industry, may be included conceptually within the 
development plan and are permitted to be moved and adjusted as necessary during the design 
and construction process without modifications to the approved development plan, so long as 
new lands are not added to the original "boundary"  of the CWECS and the relocation conforms 
to all requirements of Article 23.  Any relocation of individual components contrary to the 
approved site plan shall be identified on a revised site plan and submitted to the Public Works 
Department – Planning and Zoning Division for review and approval. 

 
B. All setback designations herein, when referenced as 'total height", shall mean "Total Tip 

Height", which is the total height of the turbine measured at the highest point of the blade 
system during its rotation, or with respect to any other structure including a meteorological 
tower, its total height.  All horizontal setbacks shall be measured from the center point of the 
turbine to the edge point from which the setback is required. 

 
2. Setbacks: 
 

A. No turbine shall be located closer than 2,000 3,000 feet or four six times the height of the 
turbine whichever is greater from a participating or non-participating principal building.  A 
principal building landowner may waive the setback requirement.  No waiver shall result in a 
setback of less than the height of the turbine plus 50 feet. 

 
B. No turbine shall be located closer than the total height of the turbine plus 50 feet from an 

accessory building, property line, or road right-of-way line. 
 

C. A private airstrip is defined as a location that is registered with the Kansas Department of 
 Transportation and Federal Aviation Administration, appears on aeronautical charts, and has 
 a landing surface(es) which is/are maintained and capable of providing a safe landing for 
 aircraft.  All such requirements must be in effect at the time a conditional use permit 
 application is accepted by the county staff as being complete. 
 

D. Setbacks from a public airport and/or private airstrip shall be two (2) nautical miles, calculated 
as 12,160 feet, from the approach ends of the runway and then by 1.5 nautical miles, calculated 
as 9,120 feet from the upwind and downwind sides of the runway.  

 
E. A private airport/private airstrip owner may waive the setback requirement for a parcel 

identified in Article 23-107(2)(E)(D).  All other requirements in Article 23 shall be enforced. 
 

F. No turbine may be located within any recorded easement.  The applicant shall consult with the 
 owner of an easement to eliminate any blanket easements on tracts of land and to establish a 
 defined legal description for the easement. 
 

G. Properties owned or managed by the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism 
(KDWPT) or any wildlife refuge owned or managed by the United States of America tend to 
concentrate wildlife to an area due to the habitat enhancements conducted on a property. These  

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-6 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

lands are important wildlife migration corridors and migration staging areas.  To avoid 
disruption of these areas, no turbine shall be located within three (3) miles of a parcel owned 
or managed by the Kansas Department of Wildlife, Parks, and Tourism or the United States 
of America. Compliance with all other setback requirements is required.  KDWPT or the 
United States of America may issue a waiver of this requirement for any parcel within the 
three-mile requirement. 

 
H. In order to provide for an incorporated city to extend its corporate boundary and increase its 
 tax base, nNo turbine shall be located within one mile of an incorporated city boundary at the 
 time a conditional use permit application is accepted by county staff as being complete.  A 
 city’s extra-territorial zoning jurisdiction (ETJ) is not recognized as a city’s official corporate 
 boundary. 
 
I. If during construction a turbine site is determined to be adversely impacted after discovered 

environmental or other factors legally preventing its use, the applicant shall have the right to 
relocate a turbine on the parcel.  The relocated turbine shall still comply with all applicable 
requirements of Article 23 and all conditions of approval associated with the conditional use 
permit. 
 

3. Noise: 
 
A. An acoustic assessment analysis and map prepared by a third-party company shall be required 

with a conditional use permit application. The acoustic study shall analyze the expected 
audible noise level on a one (1) hour continuous sound level in decibels (Leq) basis at each 
primary occupied residential structure within the project boundary and explain the 
methodology used to achieve the results of the study.   

 
B. To assist in minimizing noise generated by the turbine, the applicant should consider using 

shall use turbine blades that are equipped with Low Noise Trailing Edge (LNTE) technology 
and blade serrations or other available noise reduction technology. 

 
C. The maximum received sound level shall not be more than 45 decibels(dBA) one (1) hour Leq 

at every participating and non-participating principal building and be measured at the nearest 
wall of the principal building.  A principal building shall not include an accessory structure or 
guest house as defined by the Reno County Zoning Regulations. [45 decibels during the day 
and 40 decibels during the night] (FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION). 

 
D. A participating or non-participating landowner may waive the decibel levels exceeding the 

  requirements of this section. 

4. Shadow Flicker: 

A. Shadow flicker analysis and map prepared by a third-party company shall be required with a 
conditional use permit application.  The shadow flicker study shall analyze the expected 
annual number of hours and the specific times the shadow flicker is expected to occur at each 
principal building within the project boundary and explain the methodology used to achieve 
the results of the study. 

 
B. To minimize the effects of shadow flicker, the applicant shall utilize the data from the shadow 

flicker report to assist landowners in reducing the number of hours of shadow flicker to the 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-7 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

minimum requirement of the zoning regulations. The applicant and landowner shall 
collaborate and decide the best means to reducing the amount of shadow flicker. 

 
C. The maximum number of shadow flicker hours per year a participating or non-participating 

principal building shall receive is 30. [20 or 20 minutes per day. (FOR FURTHER 
DISCUSSION). 
 

D. A participating or non-participating landowner may waive the shadow flicker limit 
requirement. 

 
5. Communication Lines: 
 

A. Communication lines and power collection lines are to be installed underground in the area 
covered by the CUP with use of directional boring, horizontal drilling, micro-tunneling, 
vibrating plowing, narrow trench ditching and other techniques in the construction of facilities.  
Such processes are intended to result in the least amount of disruption and damage as possible 
to the surface soil and natural features.  Said lines are to be located under or at the edge of 
turbine access roads. When conditions on-site are found to make installation of underground 
supporting lines impractical or infeasible, for example the presence of existing underground 
lines or pipelines that conflict with such type of construction, above ground transmission lines 
may be used only in public rights-of-way, easements or other legal documents dedicated for 
such purposes. 

 
B. The applicant shall contact the Reno County Emergency Management Director to coordinate 

meetings with other local emergency service personnel to develop a plan to address any 
potential interruptions in 911 calls being blocked due to the construction of turbines.  The 
applicant shall submit a written report detailing the plan to mitigate any potential interruption 
in services. 

 
C. Any installation of above ground or below ground communication lines or power collection 

lines within a Special Flood Hazard Area will require a floodplain development permit. 
 

6. Rotor Blades: 
 

A. The lowest point of the rotor blades shall be at least 50 feet above ground level at the base of 
each turbine. 

 
B. Rotor blades shall be painted a non-reflective neutral color such as white or grey.  The rotor 

blades shall be painted the same color as the turbine and nacelle. 
 
C. Rotor blades shall not display company names, markings, or advertising logos. 

 
7. Lubricants and Hazardous Materials: 
 

All lubricants and/or hazardous materials to be located on the premises in connection with the CWECS 
facility shall be kept and transported in accordance with all state and Federal regulations. 

 
8. Lighting: 
 

A. Lighting of the turbines shall utilize the current Aircraft Detection Lighting System (ADLS) 
or other similar or advanced technology. 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-8 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

B. Any other lighting requirements on the turbines shall comply with, but not exceed, the 
minimum FAA requirements. 

  
C. White strobe lights on the turbines or any other aspect of the project are prohibited. 
 
D. Lights associated with the operation and maintenance facility, or other aspects of the project 

shall be directed so as not to shine directly on any adjacent property line or public road. 
 
E. Security and safety lighting shall be designed to shield the glare onto a property or public road. 

 
9. Turbines and Nacelles: 
 

A. Structures for turbines shall be self-supporting tubular towers painted a neutral color such as 
a white or grey.  The structure shall be painted the same color as the rotor blades. 

 
B. Lattice structures or other types of design are prohibited. 
 
C. A turbine and nacelle shall not display any advertising except for identification of the 

manufacturer.  Any signs, flags, streamers, or similar items are prohibited.  Other warning 
signs, placards, or required signs by a government agency are excluded from this prohibition. 

 
D. To aid in preventing unauthorized climbing of the turbine, all ladder rungs or other potential 

climbing assistance objects shall be removed up to 15 feet above the ground surface. 
 
E. Telecommunication antennas or other type of antennas used for transmission of radio signals 

not associated with a CWECS are prohibited. 
 
10. Operation Requirements: 
 

A. The CWECS, and its associated facilities, shall not be operated so as to cause microwave, 
television, radio,  telecommunication, or navigation interference contrary to Federal 
Communications Commission (FCC) regulations or other laws to occupied structures existing 
as of the date of the CUP approval.  In the event the CWECS and its associated facilities or its 
operations cause such interference, the applicant shall take timely measures necessary to 
correct the problem. 

 
B. Documentation shall be submitted by the applicant indicating compliance with minimum FCC 

Regulations. 
 
11. Ice Throw: 

 
An ice throw analysis and map prepared by a third-party company shall be required with a conditional 
use permit application.  The ice throw study shall analyze the conditions which may cause ice to be 
thrown off an in-motion turbine blade and toward an occupied structure within the project boundary.  
The study should explain the methodology used in evaluating the risk of damage to occupied principal 
buildings.  Also included in the study should be the manufacturer’s setback distances related to in-
motion ice throws and the type of ice monitoring sensors and devices installed in each turbine and the 
potential maximum distance ice could be thrown from an in-motion turbine blade. 
 
 
 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-9 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

12. Soil Erosion, Sediment Control, Stormwater Runoff, and Wetlands: 
 

The Applicant shall develop a Soil Erosion, Sediment Control and Stormwater Runoff Plan.  The Plan 
shall address what type of erosion control measures will be implemented during each phase of the 
project.  The Plan shall address the following concerns: 
 
A. Grading. 
 
B. Construction and drainage of access roads and turbine pads. 
 
C. Necessary soil information. 
 
D. Design features to maintain downstream water quality. 
 
E. Re-vegetation of disturbed area to ensure slope stability. 
 
F. Restoration of the site after temporary project activities have ended. 
 
G. Creation of a new wetland area that is equal to or greater than any wetland area that is filled 

in or destroyed. 
 
H. Disposal or storage of excavated materials. 
 
I. Protecting exposed soil. 
 
J. Stabilizing restored material and removal of silt fences or barriers when the area is stabilized. 
 
K. Maintenance of erosion control measures throughout the life of the project. 
 
If required, the Applicant shall obtain an erosion control permit for the project from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment (KDHE).  The approved erosion control permit shall be 
submitted prior to the issuance of a zoning permit.  The measures listed above shall be the minimum 
required under the issued KDHE permit. 
 

13. Special Flood Hazard Areas: 
 

A. If required, the Applicant shall obtain a floodplain development permit from the Kansas 
Department of Agriculture – Division of Water Resources, for any development identified as 
being located in a special flood hazard area.  Such development could include, but not be 
limited to, the placement of a turbine, construction of a road, location of electrical lines under 
a stream, or location of a building. 

 
B. Prior to starting construction activities, the applicant shall obtain a local floodplain 

development permit for all construction in the special flood hazard area prior to the issuance 
of a zoning permit or for any portion of the project not requiring a zoning permit. 

 
C. To the extent feasible, the design of the CWECS project should have a minimal impact of land 

identified as within a special flood hazard area.  It is expected of the applicant to locate all 
turbines and buildings out of the special flood hazard area so the project will have a minimum 
impact on the special flood hazard area. 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-10 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

23-108 Special Regulations Applicable for a Conditional Use Permit for a CWECS: 
 
The timeline restrictions in Article 8 and Article 15 are not applicable to a CWECS project because of the 
overall length of time necessary for the development and construction of the project.  With respect to a CWECS 
project approved after the adoption of this section: 
 
1. For all Conditional Use Permits approved for a CWECS project, a zoning permit shall be applied for 

within two (2) years of the approved CUP.  Approval of the CUP is effective (the “EFFECTIVE 
DATE”) when the County Commissioners’ Resolution approving the same is published in the official 
county newspaper.  If construction of the project cannot be commenced within that two (2) year period, 
the applicant may obtain a single one-year extension upon the submission of a written report to the 
Board of County Commissioners describing the reason(s) for the delay and the plan for commencing 
construction within the one-year extension period.  The one-year extension must be approved prior to 
the expiration of the original two-year period. 
 

2.  For all Conditional Use Permits approved for a CWECS project, such permit shall be permitted to 
continue, as-long-as all conditions placed on the permit are met. However, if the CWECS project 
construction has not commenced within two (2) years following approval of the CUP or any extension 
thereof as aforesaid, the CUP shall have expired, and the development plan is forfeited.   In such event, 
the Applicant will not be permitted to pursue the Development Plan until a new application is 
submitted, a new public hearing held, and a new CUP is approved. 

 
23-109  Agreements and Requirements: 
 
Prior to the issuance of the zoning permits, the Applicant of the CWECS and the Board of County 
Commissioners shall enter into a Development Agreement with respect to the subject matters outlined below 
under such terms and conditions acceptable to the Board of County Commissioners.  A Development 
Agreement shall be executed by the Applicant and the Board of County Commissioners within 120 days 
following the EFFECTIVE DATE or the CUP approval will have terminated at the discretion of the Board of 
County Commissioners.  This list of agreements and specific requirements can be supplemented or removed 
by mutual agreement of both parties. 
 
The following subject matters may be addressed, in the discretion of the County Commissioners, in a 
Development Agreement or series of Development Agreements and shall not be considered exclusive of all 
such matters: 
 
1. A Road Maintenance, Repair, and Replacement Agreement. 

 
The Road Maintenance Agreement may include, but shall not be limited to, such topics as: 
 
A. Designation of the public roads used for transportation routes for construction and 

maintenance of the CWECS shall be included within the mandatory Road Maintenance 
Agreement specified in these Regulations. 

 
B. The applicant shall receive an Oversized/Overweight permit from the Reno County Public 

Works Department for transporting CWECS components that are over the legal weight, width, 
or length limit.  A proposed route shall be submitted on the Oversized/Overweight Permit for 
transportation routes by the applicant.  The transportation route shall be approved by the Public 
Works Department by signature on the permit form. 

 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-11 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

C. Applicant shall construct the smallest number of turbine access roads as reasonably feasible.  
Access roads shall be low profile roads so farming equipment can cross them.  Where an 
access road crosses a stream or drainageway, it shall be designed and constructed so runoff 
from the upper portions of the watershed can readily flow to the lower portion of the 
watershed.  Where an access road crosses a stream or drainage way identified as a Special 
Flood Hazard Area, the applicant shall obtain a floodplain development permit from the state 
and county. 

 
2. A Decommissioning Agreement with the Board of County Commissioners pertaining to CWECS 

improvements. 
 

The Decommission Agreement may include, but shall not be limited to, such topics as: 
 
A. Removal of the turbine and nacelle. 

 
B. Removal of a portion of the concrete base down to a minimum of four feet below ground 

surface. 
 

C. Replacing the two bottom feet with subsoil composed of sand, silt, and clay materials and the 
top two feet with topsoil suitable for agriculture purposes. 

 
D. Removal of access roads. 

 
E. Re-seeding of disturbed areas. 
 

F. Timeline for removal. 
 

G. Removal of electrical equipment. 
 

H. Recognition of a landowner’s right to request access roads be left intact. 
 

I. Recognition of a landowner’s right to be satisfied with the decommission efforts of the 
applicant or a hired contractor. 

 
J. A discussion of Additional circumstances which may require the decommissioning of a 

turbine(s). 
 
3. An Indemnification Agreement: 
 

An Indemnification Agreement with the County throughout the life of the project and a policy of 
general liability insurance with policy limits satisfactory to the Board of County Commissioners which 
identifies the County as an additional insured. 
 

4. A Dispute and Mitigation Agreement: 
 

A Dispute and Mitigation Agreement procedure and resolution process by which the Developer shall 
address complaints by landowners or other affected parties regarding the project from construction to 
operation and throughout the life of the project. 
 
 
 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-12 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

5. A Bird Strike and Reporting Agreement: 
 
A Bird Strike and Reporting Agreement may be established and include an annual report submitted to 
the County Commissioners indicating all reported bird strikes related to the project. 

 
6. Professional Certification Agreement: 

 
A written certification by a licensed and qualified professional engineer, approved by the County, that 
each turbine location complies with all setback requirements. 

 
7. A Payment In lieu of Tax Agreement (PILOT): 

 
An agreement which adequately compensates the County for governmental services provided in the 
project boundary during a ten-year period of tax exemption. 
 

8. Fire Safety, and Rescue, and Hazardous Material Plan: 
 
The Plan shall be reviewed by the Emergency Management Director.  Within the Plan, the applicant 
shall identify the potential fire risk associated with the project, including both prescribed burning and 
non-prescribed burning (natural or accidental).  The Plan shall address fire within the project boundary, 
fire escaping from the site, and the effects of a fire originating from outside the site.  The plan shall 
demonstrate how the CWECS and equipment, environment, and private properties are protected from 
fire and hazardous materials. 
 

9. Surety Agreement: 
 
The applicant shall provide appropriate surety for the life of the project satisfactory to the Board of 
County Commissioners. 
 

10. Transfer of Ownership: 
 

If ownership of the CWECS is transferred from the CWECS Applicant identified in the original 
permitting documents to any entity, the new owner shall be responsible and accountable for the terms 
and conditions of the approved Conditional Use Permit, the Development Agreement, other applicable 
agreements, the zoning permit requirements, and all applicable requirements of the Zoning and 
Subdivision Regulations.  Notice of such transfer and acknowledgement by the new owner of 
compliance obligations shall be provided to the Zoning Administrator and the Board of County 
Commissioners. 
 

23-110 Requirements for Zoning Permit: 
 
If applicable, the following requirements shall be met to obtain a zoning permit from the County: 
 
1. No zoning permit application shall be accepted by the County until all required agreements listed under 

Article 23-109 between the Applicant and the County have been properly executed by the Applicant 
and the County. 
 

2. A zoning permit shall be required for the construction of each turbine and building within the approved 
CWECS accompanied by the payment of all fees as established by the County.  Construction shall be 
permitted to begin as outlined in the Development Agreement. 
 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-13 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

3. A Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPP) and NPDES permit from the Kansas Department of 
Health and Environment shall be finalized and submitted prior to the issuance of a zoning permit and 
the start of construction. 

 
4. Filing and maintaining a current FAA Determination of No-Hazard to Air Navigation document 

verifying each turbine, when constructed according to the approved development plan, will not 
constitute a hazard to aircraft. 

 
5. Oversized/overweight permit from the Public Works Department. 

 
6. Wastewater and well permits from the Health Department. 

 
7. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 permit. 

 
8. Kansas Department of Agriculture – Division of Water Resources stream obstruction and floodplain 

fill permit. 
 

9. The application for a zoning permit shall include, but not be limited to, a site plan showing the 
following information: 

 
A. The location of the structure or turbine and any other onsite facilities such as a control room 

or transformer on a survey prepared by a registered land surveyor showing the distance from 
the property lines.  The floodplain boundary (where applicable) should also be located on the 
survey.  The survey showing the turbine location submitted with the CUP application may be 
used provided the location of the turbine has not been re-located from the approved 
development plan. 

 
B. The turbine number and megawatt capacity. 

 
C. The location of above ground and below ground transmission lines. 

 
D. The location of the interior access road. 

 
E. An outline of any proposed site preparation activities involving removal of vegetation, 

excavation of soil, locations of soil stockpile, and restoration plans for the site after 
construction concludes. 

 
F.   The approved state and local floodplain development permits (where applicable). 
 

23-111 Construction Requirements: 
 
1. The CWECS Applicant shall inform all employees, contractors and others involved in the construction 

of the CWECS project of the terms and conditions of the approved Conditional Use Permit.  Violations 
of the conditions associated with the Conditional Use Permit are the responsibility of the CWECS 
Applicant, not the landowner. 
 

2. The County retains the authority to enter into a contract with a structural engineering firm licensed by 
the State of Kansas Board of Technical Professions to offer engineering services to the County as 
defined by the Development Agreement.  Documentation regarding each approved permit or 
inspection shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator.  Payment for the costs incurred by the County 
from the engineering firm shall be negotiated through the Development Agreement. 



ARTICLE 23            COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS (CWECS) REGULATIONS 
 

 
Reno County Zoning Regulations (April 2016 Edition)                                            23-14 

 
DRAFT 02/09/21 

 

3. Confirmation from an engineering company the turbines comply with the development plan, the 
zoning regulations, and the conditions associated with the approved Conditional Use Permit. 
 

4. Prior to the start of, and continuously throughout construction and site restoration, the CWECS 
Applicant shall designate a field representative responsible for overseeing compliance with the 
conditions of the CUP.  The field representative shall be accessible by telephone and email as needed 
by the Zoning Administrator or his designee.  The field representative shall provide an address, phone 
number, and emergency phone number to the Zoning Administrator.  The CWECS Applicant shall 
notify the Zoning Administrator should a change be made in the field representative.   
 

5. Any off-site construction needs outside of the permitted CWECS Conditional Use Permit shall comply 
with all applicable Zoning and Subdivision Regulations. 
 

6. The CWECS Applicant, or its construction company, shall disturb or clear a site only to the extent 
necessary to assure suitable access for construction, safe operation, and maintenance of the CWECS. 
The contractor shall minimize the removal of trees and shall not remove groves of trees or hedgerows 
(shelter belts) without approval of the affected landowner.  During site clearance and construction, silt 
fences and other temporary erosion controls, as required by the KDHE erosion control permit, shall be 
installed and left in place until new vegetation covers the ground around the turbines. 
 

7. Cleanup: 
 
The CWECS Applicant, or its construction company, shall remove all waste, scrap, and temporary 
erosion control measures that are the product of construction, operation, restoration, and maintenance 
from the site and properly dispose of it upon completion of each turbine. 

 
8. Operation & Maintenance: 
 

The CWECS Applicant shall file the following information with the Zoning Administrator: 
 

A. Operation and maintenance requirements (including the frequency of maintenance activities) 
for the turbines and transmission lines. 

 
B. The required width of transmission line easements and any necessary restrictions on land use 

development, buildings, and access within the easement. 
 

C. Any restrictions on participating property owner land uses, height of buildings, or location of 
building. 
 

 



  

 120 W. Avenue B, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

(620)694-2911         Fax: (620)694-2767 

 

 

 

Monthly Report for March 2021 
Submitted by 

Barbara Lilyhorn 
Director- Department of Aging and Public Transportation 

 

Staff 

 A driver resigned as of March 17 – new position announcement went out on March 18 – so far, we 3 

applicants. 

Budget 

The Department of Aging and the Department of Public Transportation have spent 16% and 17% 

respectively of the Department budgets – a composite total of 17% of the entire 002 budget as of 3 -

23-21.  Rcat continues to have eligible grant expenditures reimbursed at 100%.  

 

Challenges 

The pandemic continues to overshadow all aspects of the work in each department. 

 

Bright Spots 

All FTA funded public transits have been encouraged to assist in providing transportation to 

vaccination sites.  Rcat was invited by the Health Department to work with them as they scheduled 

people for vaccinations – as a result – Rcat was listed on the “website signup sheet” for vaccinations.  

People call Rcat directly and schedule a ride after getting their vaccination appointment set.  Rcat has 

incorporated these rides into our Paratransit schedule so the person receives “door -to door” service 

to and from their appointment. To date we have provided transportation for 53 people.  On the 

afternoon of March 11, we also provided 43 rides to a POD for the Tyson company – we took 

employees from the South Main Hutchinson site to the main building in South Hutchinson and back 

again.  We dedicated a para transit bus and driver for about 3 hours for that work. 

Overall, I think providing theses rides has been a win-win situation because while some of the people 

who needed rides were current Rcat rider – others were not.  The opportunity to provide  

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #09A



  

 120 W. Avenue B, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

(620)694-2911         Fax: (620)694-2767 

 

transportation showcased our service and may encourage people to utilize Rcat again.  We will 

continue to assist as needed. 

I was invited to fill a vacancy on the Kansas Public Transit Association board of directors. This will involve 

5 meetings each year either on ZOOM or in Topeka – all costs are paid for (food, travel, and lodging - if 

necessary). I am looking forward to serving. The board works closely with KDOT to provide input 

regarding the implementation of the U.S.C. 49-5310 & 5311 grants and to provide continuing education 

for transit providers across the state.   

We received our FY 2022 grant award letter from KDOT with the following funds approved: 

• Federal 5311 Operating = $605,515.00 

• Federal 5311 Administrative = $131,823.20 

• State 5311 Operating - $242,206.00 

• We were also awarded 3 Cutaway buses. 

This award operates on the State Fiscal Year and so, begins on July 1, 2021. 

KDOT announced that CARES Act funding will be provided at 100% for Operating Funds until depleted – 

estimated to be late this calendar year.  As o f July 1, 2021 Admin costs will return to 80%/20% cost share 

and Capital awards will also be 80%/20% cost share as usual. 

 

Every year the Department of Aging writes a request for funding to the South-Central Kansas Area Agency 

on Aging for the work we perform under the Older Americans Act Title IIIB and IIIE.  These are federal 

funds that funnel into the Kansas Department of Aging and pass to SCKAAA and then to local agencies.  

Those funds are “operated” on the federal fiscal year Oct 1 – Sept. 30.  Because I budget the award based 

on the county FY - I wait to submit the report requesting funds for the work we have performed during 

the months of Oct., Nov, and Dec until after the first of the year.  Our total award is usually about $12K 

and we always max out our award. However, we continue to do “the work” of the title program and I 

keep reporting it monthly.  This year we maxed out and well over produced our IIIB award “work” in 

October ($4,706) but, (if I understood correctly) due to the CARES funding, there was carryover from the 

FY ending Sept. 30 and we were awarded the full amount for the work we did from Oct – February 

($16,374).   

 







  
120 W. Avenue B, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

620-694-2585 
Fax: 620-694-2767 

 
 
 
 

Automotive 

Budget YTD Summary 

 

As of March 29, 2021, we have used 23% of our overall budget.  This amounts to $34,881 out of the 

overall budget of $154,752. 

 

Projects/ Issues  

 

No major projects are planned other than routine.  One thing of note is the rise in fuel prices.  In January 

our average fuel cost per gallon was $1.896 while so far in March our average is $2.409. The Dept. of 

Energy fuel forecast for 2021 is an average price of $2.426 ($2.61 - .184 federal tax) so hopefully we will 

see a leveling out of fuel costs. We are hoping to receive the two new hybrid Interceptor  SUVs for the 

Sheriff’s Dept. in May. 

 

 



 

 
RENO COUNTY 

125 West 1st Ave. 
                                                                       Hutchinson, Kansas 67501 

                                  (620) 694-2934 
      Donna Patton                                                                  Fax: (620) 694-2534 

      County Clerk                                       TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Clerk/Election Monthly Report for March 

 

We are getting some filings in for the City/School Elections in August and November. We still 

have some cleanup in our election room and cleanup with the voter registration roll that we 

are still working on. 

  

In the Clerk’s Office, it has been a normal month. In the next 4 or 5 months, we will be looking 

at a new postage machine and folder/inserter. The lease on our current system will be up in 

February 2022.  

 

The Annex Conference Room will be getting the sound system installed on March 31st through 

April 2nd.  

 

By the end of March, 23% of the year-to-date budget in the Clerk’s Office was used and 42% 

in the Election’s Office with most of the Clerk’s Office used for payroll. The election budget 

expenses went up because we paid our user fees for our voter system which was $15,000 and 

our insurance for our Election Equipment which was $1,462.65.  

 

March was a usual month with organizing and clean up being the main focus.  

 

Donna Patton 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Commission Update         March 2021 

 

Staffing 

 Michael Barbeau was hired for the stand-by male transporter position and started on March 5.  

There were no other staff changes in March. 

 

Projects / Concerns 

 The Kansas Department of Corrections partnered with Microsoft to update the documentation 

systems used by Community Corrections for adult and juvenile clients, State Parole, and by prison 

facilities.  This new computer program is intented to be more seamless in tracking a person through the 

post-conviction justice system.  All full-time staff are completing training to use the new computer 

program in March.  The anticipated go-live date for the program is April 5. 

 The success rate for the adult supervision program is at 76.6% with 108 successful completions 

and 33 people being revoked to prison.  Eighty five percent of the revocations had a new crime as a 

contributing factor in the revocation.  Just over half of those revoked, 52%, either requested to serve 

their underlying sentence or requested to do so as part of a plea agreement on a new case.   

 

Budget 

 The personnel budget continues to remain on target with the year-end approaching.  Most 

other budget lines are slightly under budget. 



 

 
 
 
 

Communications Monthly Report- March 2021 
 
Major Projects:  

• Communications for Health Department: 
o Assisted with POD tours for Telemundo, Univision, Kansas Health Foundation, KWCH 
o Media/ad buying schedule and graphics for March- Billboards, newspapers (Hutch News and rural 

Messenger), radio (Eagle and Ad Astra), and digital banners. Creatives for each to run through April, 
switched out as phases changed from 3-4 and 5 

o Press Releases: 2 Health Alerts (Hepatitis A and Overdoses), Phase Changes x 3, Mask Mandate, New 
clinic site, call in appointments, accreditation 

o Created flyers for schools/parent’s vaccines, and flyer for community listening tour 
o Directional signage for Vaccine Clinics 
o Commissioners presenting Certificate of Appreciation to Medicine Shoppe- 3.21.21- photo, social, 

press invite 

• General website updates and social media postings for all County departments (road closings, job postings, 
youth services stats, name changes, videos for transportation) 

• Graphics:  Created Vector logo for Emergency Management signage, banner for front door Courthouse 

• Videos:  
o Interviewed Tom Stanton for Drug Court Video- scheduling other shoots and hope to wrap up in April 
o Vaccination clinic video tour 
o Videotaped Emergency Management at 3.29.21 wildfires for future departmental video 
o Livestreamed wildfire press conference 3.29.21 on EMA Facebook 

• Social Media:    
o Followers/posts:  

▪ Facebook Reno Co.: 2,560 (+188), 29 posts 
▪ Facebook EMA: 10,963 (+695), 15 posts 
▪ Twitter: 761 (+15), 23 tweets  
▪ Top Post Reno Co. Facebook page: Pre-registration link/info for Feb. 5th clinic 

• 19,531K reach, 1,682 post clicks, 199link clicks, 144 shares 
▪ Top Post Emergency Management Facebook page: Livestream of Fire Update with Sheriff 

Campbell- 3.29.21 

•  22,530 reach, 5,041 post clicks, 83 link clicks, 101 shares 
▪ Top post Reno County Twitter: Medicine Shoppe Recognition- 1,212 impressions, 119 

engagements 

• Website: Met with CivicPlus to begin website revisions. Scheduled to start week of May 31st 

• Other Press Releases: Deputy District Attorney, Reno County Fires 

• Committee meetings: Market Hutch and 150th Anniversary Hutch/Reno County  
 
Issues: No issues to report 
 

Administration 

206 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, KS 67501-5245 

620-694-2929 





  

Emergency Management 
 

Reno County 
206 W 1st Ave 
Hutchinson, KS 67501 
620-694-2974 

Staffing changes or issues (if any) 

There are no staffing changes to report.  In my department, I have a full time Emergency Management 

Specialist and due to COVID we have hired a temporary full time administrative assistant.  We continue 

to work hard to maintain daily operations. 

Budget YTD summary 

At the end of March, I have used 16% of my year-to-date budget with most of that coming from payroll.  

There are no large purchases planned in the next month. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

For the month of March, my department continues to work on the COVID-19 response.  We have also 

responded to some large wildfires, started working on the Local Emergency Operations Plan, and 

entering Tier II facilities into CAMEO.  I hope that our fire consultant wraps up the fire study in the 

month of April.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RE:  Monthly report ending March 2021 

 

 

Dear Randy Partington, County Administrator: 

 

Staffing changes or issues  

We continue to have one vacancy for a Health Educator; it was filled last week.  We also have an 

opening in Environmental Health; we will start to conduct interviews as resumes are received.       

 

Budget YTD summary 

In discussing our budget with Bethany, our biggest expenses have been for battling Covid-19.  

Upcoming expenditure include our replacement generator.   

 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

On-line scheduling for vaccine administration.  The scheduling system created by our IT 

department has been working well.  We have recently been working between our IT department 

and KIPHS (our current Practice Management System) on the interfacing of data to continue to 

reduce staff time on manually entering data.  We are pleased to announce that this interface (of 

patient demographic information) is complete and working well.  We will continue to monitor 

this interface/mapping and move forward with our next data interface/mapping project.    

Vaccine Administration.  In looking at our Covid-19 Dashboard, 24.06% of the Reno County 

residents have received at least 1 dose of the vaccine.  We continue to work on scheduling 

vaccine clinics to at-risk populations and to outlying Reno County communities.   

Hepatitis A Outbreak.  We have had 6 new cases since January.  Karen Hammersmith and Elliot 

Koester, our Epidemiologist, continue to work with the Epidemiologists at KDHE on our 

response and action plan.  

Drug Overdose.  As reported on Wednesday, March 24, we had 3 overdose incidents within 24 

hours.  We are working with our Drug Overdose Collaborative and Laurie Moody on community 

education.   

 

Upcoming Projects 

As our Covid-19 vaccine administration becomes a daily activity, staff are able to look at 

returning to normal job duty responsibilities.    

 

Sincerely,  

Karla Nichols 

Director of Public Health 

209 West 2nd Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5232 

(620) 694-2900 

Fax (620) 694-2901 

TDD: Kansas Relay Center 800-766-3777 

www.renogov.org/health 

http://www.renogov.org/health


                                                                                               
           RENO COUNTY 
                                                                                       206 West First Ave. 
                              Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 

                                                                          PHONE: (620) 694-2982 
   FAX: (620) 694-2508 

 
 

 
 

Board of Commissioners - Department Update 

Human Resources - March 2021 
Helen Foster – Human Resources Interim Director 

 
 
Staffing 
 
Human Resources is currently down 1 staff member.  The HR Director position is open and due to close to 
applicants on March 31st.  This position is a very vital part of our department. It would be our hope to have 
someone in place soon to alleviate some of the workload on the other staff members. 
 
 
Fraudulent Unemployment Claims 
 
March has been a good month.  The last fraudulent claim was filed on February 22nd for our agency.  Due to stricter 
verification processes, Department of Labor has been able to stop most of the fraudulent claims. We have not 
received any appeals or rulings in the past several weeks. 
 
Personnel Budgets  
 
At this time, I have not been able to process these, but will start working on them in the next couple of weeks.  I will 
plan to get these to the departments as soon as they are completed for review.  With the compensation study, my 
intent will be to send each department their budget while keeping the salaries flat until the comp study is 
completed. 
 
Compensation Study   
 
In the next couple of weeks, The Arnold Group will be beginning the process of Job Description reviews.  On April 
1st and thereafter, emails will be going out to each department head with instruction on the review process for the 
job descriptions.  Phil Hays will be requesting that information be sent directly to him one it is completed. It will be 
important that department heads keep to the deadline, since this will be a tight timeline to make the cutoff for the 
2022 budget. 
 
Department Activity 
 
In the month of March, we have had 10 new hires and 11 separations.  This is an increase of activity for 
onboarding and offboarding of employees.  We currently have 19 job postings with 2 of them closing soon.   
 
  

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

March 26, 2021 

 
           Monthly Report Information Services 

           Michael Mathews 

 

 

Staffing changes or issues (if any) 

We continue to have the Web app developer/DBA position open. It is being advertised. We are currently receiving very 

low interest in the position. We have recently interviewed 2 candidates. 

Budget YTD summary 

At the end of March, I have used 32% of out adopted budget, this is a normal amount of expenditure due to the  number 

of  annual software support contracts that come due very early in the year.  

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

Our biggest project this month continues to be working with the Health department on an online Covid-19 Vaccine 

signup. We have as of today received the update from KIPHS to begin uploading the appointments collected from the 

site into KIPHS. This should be a time saver for the Health department. We have started testing the use of thin clients to 

use the Citrix virtual desktop application. We will begin deploying the new phone system April 1st that will continue for 

around 2 weeks.  

Issues that we dealt with the past month include. We had very few issues this month outside of being down one staff 

member. 

March was a good month we were able to complete several projects, Inventory and Covid Signup are a couple. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RENO COUNTY 
206 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 
620-694-2523 

Fax: 620-694-2954 



         

  

 

 

Maintenance & Purchasing Monthly Report  4-1-2021 

Harlen Depew, Director 

Staffing:  The Maintenance Dept. has hired one Maintenance Tech and is still taking applications for the remaining 

open daytime position.  Applications have been very slow coming in.  We filled our part time custodial position and 

one of our Full time slots with two part time employees.  Custodian, Randy Newton retired at the end of the 

month, leaving to open custodial positions. 

Budget YTD summary 

The Maintenance & Purchasing operating budget is on track for this time of the year. 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

The Law Enforcement Center remodel is wrapping up.  We’re still working with Sarah Sipe at Landmark Architects 

to resolve a few remaining issues, but overall the project has gone well.  

The work at the courthouse continues to progress nicely.  The first round of restored windows are anticipated to 

be reinstalled on the first floor starting the week of April 12.  Interior plaster repairs and painting will be ramping 

up over the next week. 

Commissioner Hirst, Randy Partington, and Harlen Depew met with GLMV Architects recently to review conceptual 

design options for more effective use of the space on the first floor of the courthouse.  They are currently 

incorporating our comments into their drawings and preparing cost estimates for various options for the County 

Commission to consider. 

Groundskeeping tasks are picking up as we head into spring, which keeps one of our people tied up the majority of 

the week during the peak of the growing season.  We take care of the grounds at the Courthouse, LEC, Courthouse 

Annex, Rcat, Extension Office, Maintenance Site, and as needed, at the Reno County Correctional Facility. 

As the new jail is heading into its seventh year in operation, we’re starting to see more things needing repair 

simply due to normal wear and tear.  We will be doing some interior painting at that location as time allows, just to 

keep the facility looking good. 

One of the larger projects we’re taking on this year with Maintenance employees will be a facelift in the 

Emergency Operation Center in the LEC.  This will include removing the built in console in the center of the room, 

adding new workstation around the perimeter, new carpet and paint, etc.  This project will be done in several 

phases, with phase one beginning in April. 

   



 

Don Brittain 

Public Works Director 

 

Road & Bridge • Planning & Zoning • Noxious Weed • Utilities 

 
                                                                                                   

  

March 2021 Monthly Report 

 

Staff 

 

Public Works is short four (4) equipment operators.  

 

YTD Budget Spent 

 

Road & Bridge 10%  

Planning & Zoning 19% 

Noxious Weed 15%    

Highlands Water District #8, 2%  

Yoder Water District #101, 9%      

Cedarview Lodge Sewer District #1, 24%  

Habit Sewer District #202, 53% 

Yoder Sewer District #201, 14% 

Blue Spruce District #3-10, 4% 

Highlands District #8, 15% 

 

Equipment 

All items have been ordered based off the equipment plan and in the process of being built. 

 

Projects 

 

Asphalt Crew is shouldering roadway with turf to eliminate road edge drop off. 

Mowing/Sign Crew is tree trimming throughout the County and replacing signs as needed. 

Dirt Crew is replacing culverts throughout the County. 

Bridge Crew is building a bridge on Maple Grove Road. 

 

Contracted Projects 

 

43rd Avenue Bridge is 60% complete and on schedule. 

Nickerson Road Bridge is 55% complete and on schedule. 

Silver Lake Road Bridge 12 miles east and 1 mile north of Pretty Prairie is 80% complete. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Works 

600 Scott Boulevard 

South Hutchinson, Kansas 67505 

620-694-2976 

Don Brittain, Director 

 



Challenges  

 

Working on method of rehabilitating Sewer District 201 Yoder and Sewer District 202 Habit.  

 

Working with KDOT on K14 County Special Maintenance Agreement. 

 

Meet with Grant Township to explain how the K14 KDOT Maintenance Agreement effects them and 

their request that the County Public Works Director to represent them. 

 

Working on solving the Water District 101 Yoder high nitrate problem. 

 

Concern 

 

Having enough staff to mow ROW and enough temporary help to maintain traffic control for Asphalt Crew 

this summer.  

 

 

 



 Reno County Register of Deeds Office 
Michelle Updegrove, Registrar 

125 W. 1st Avenue, Hutchinson, KS 67501 

Phone: (620) 694-2942  •   Fax: (620) 694-2944  

michelle.updegrove@renogov.org 
 

 
 
 

Register of Deeds Monthly Report for Commission 
March 2021 

Current Business: 
March 2021: 

• Documents Recorded: 1,023 

• Recording Fees Collected: $50,701.00 

• Technology Fund Fees Collected: $12,099.00 
o County Clerk: $2,016.50 

o County Treasurer: $2,016.50 

o Register of Deeds: $8,066.00 

• Heritage Trust Fund (HTF): $4,033.00 

• Copy Fees: $1,175.00 

Budgetary 
• Percent of Budget Spent: 22% 

 

Proposal for Part-Time Employee: 
I have discussed the proposal with Randy regarding retaining a Part-Time employee for this 

office for much needed relief in our daily workload. If approved this year, the salary for this 

position would be paid for out of the Tech Fund. 

An employee who is compensated from technology funds must perform duties that are related 

to the storing, recording, archiving, retrieving, maintaining, and handling of data recorded or 

stored in the office of the Register of Deeds. Cited herein: K.S.A. 2009 Supp. 28-115; and  

28-115a. In  

Proposed duties for this position would be indexing document information into land record 

books, scanning and storing each days documents into electronic archives and continue 

building the numerical index into the Records Management System (RMS) by adding records 

from 1872-1990.  

This person would also do light in-house digitizing of the land record book index pages and UCC 

library to comply with record retention schedules set by Kansas Statutes and Kansas 

Administrative Regulations (K.A.R.). 

In addition to assisting the Real Estate Clerk if needed with daily record indexing, this position 

would also take lead on the Digitizing Project and manage the document handling between the 

Register of Deeds office and the digitizing company which is currently Salina Blue. 

 



 

1 

 

                                                                              
            RENO COUNTY 

  Sheriff:          Darrian Campbell                           Sheriff’s Office 
                                                          Undersheriff:         Shawn McHaley                          206 West First Ave. 
                                                                                                                 Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5298 
                                                                              (620) 694-2735 Office (620) 694-2702 fax 
                                                                           TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777  
 

 

 

 March 2021 BOCC Update 04/02/2021 
 

Staffing changes or issues: 

The Reno County Sheriff’s Office is staffed at 101 personnel; 85 full time sworn Deputies, 12 civilian support 

staff and 4 part-time Offender registry personnel. 

 

Patrol 

Detectives 

Correctional Facility: 

 Deputies 

 Nurse 

 

 

 

Budget YTD summary: 

The total agency budget is $6,611,844.00.  

Expenditures compared to where we should be. 

 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns: 

 

2022 Budget talks 

Courthouse entrance/Construction 

Firearms Range Agreement 

 

 

 

Darrian L. Campbell 

Reno County Sheriff 

 

 

* These are talking points and the brief will be given in person.



                           Reno County Solid Waste  
                                                                                 703 S. Mohawk 
                                                                                 Hutchinson, KS 67501 
              (620) 694-2586 
              Fax (620) 694-669-8126 

 

 
 

Solid Waste Monthly Update March 2021 
Prepared by Megan Davidson, Director 

 
Staffing: We currently have 1 General Laborer position open at the landfill. The staff is hard at work on 
the pad construction for the new landfill facilities as the General Contractor will be coming onsite 
sometime in early May. It is getting closer to mowing season so staff is also preparing the mowers and 
weed eaters for a busy mowing season ahead. They are also performing their day to day operations of 
running the various sites that we have and keeping busy with the spring cleaning jobs everybody is 
coming out with. The office staff is hard at work on the accounts payable, billings, and also beginning to 
work on the commercial assessments for the 2022 year.  
 
Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns: The General Contractor plans to be onsite starting early May. The 
customer convenience center was delayed an additional 3 weeks which in turn delayed our Notice to 
Proceed with the General Contractor by 3 weeks. The project is still looking like they will be completed 
by early December as long as we do not have to many delays along the way. 
 
March has been a wet and windy month for us at the landfill. Staff has been busy pumping water from 
the cells to stay in compliance as well as picking up litter outside and inside the fences. They also do 
road checks down the main roads to the landfill multiple times per week.  
 
In February we sent out Concrete crushing quotes to 3 vendors (Wyer Concrete Crushing (local 
business), Heartstone Concrete Crushing, and Fremar Inc. both out of Wichita. Two of them returned 
quotes back and the low quote was Wyer Concrete Crushing here in Hutchinson in the amount of $7.25 
per ton. We have budgeted to crush 6,000 tons as this will be used on the new facilities project we are 
currently working on. The Crushing will begin sometime in the month of April and will come out of our 
operating funds.  
 
 
Budget: Budget preparation is in full swing for the 2022 budget. Our 816 Compactor is going in to the 
shop to replace the wheel tips on the wheels as well as resurface the outer edges of the wheels in the 
month of April. Every quarter Foley comes out and measures our wheel tips and they are to the point 
where they need to be replaced. The cost of this repair is $30,040.00 The last time we had the wheels 
retipped on the 816 was in 2015.The money will come out of the maintenance of machinery line. So far 
for the first quarter on 2022 the budget is looking in good shape for the first 3 months of the year.  

 
 
 

 
 

  



 

www.renogov.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 24, 2021 

 

 

MONTHLY REPORT 
 

 
 

STAFFING CHANGES OR ISSUES:   

 

I am happy to report there are no changes in staffing at this time.  

 

 

BUDGET YTD SUMMARY: 

 

As of this day, we are running around 23% of our budget in the largest expenses we have (i.e. 

Payroll, postage and contractual Services).   Contractual services include annual fees for several 

items, including insurance, service contracts for file safe, etc.  I do not foresee a lot of expense 

for annual items in this area. The YTD budget left is  $195,593.66  with $42,937.34 being spent 

YTD to date. We continue to watch our postage and use email as often as possible.   

 

 

PROJECTS/ISSUES/CHALLENGES/CONCERNS: 

 

My department’s major projects for the month of March was the distribution.  We also worked 

on getting reports, etc. on the computer for Leslie in preparation of the audit.  There is the usual 

processing titles, renewals and refunds of motor vehicle tags.  However, we are gearing up for 

the 2nd half tax payments which involve us sending files to mortgage companies, verifying partial 

payments and balances due for customers who are calling in.  We continue to renew commercial 

accounts that missed their deadline.  Along with our regular daily activities, we are also working 

on the annual tax sale and preparing the budget. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

RENO COUNTY TREASURER 
125 West First Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas 67501-5245 
620-694-2938 

Fax: 620-694-2776 
T

TDD: Kansas Relay Center 1-800-766-3777 
 

 



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Youth Services Monthly Report 

March 2021 

 

 

Staffing changes or issues (if any) 

We are currently accepting applications for a full time cook, Standby Juvenile Detention Officer/Youth Care 

Specialist and a full-time maintenance technician position.  Unfortunately, very few applicants have applied for 

these positions.  Both positions, cook and maintenance, are full time positions which come with K-pers and 

insurance benefits.   

Our Food Service Manager, Annette Raya retired on March 31st.  She was hired in 2003 as our cook and was 

promoted to our Food Manager in Oct. 2016.  Her 18 years of service is appreciated, and she will be missed.  

The Foods Service Manager’s position was filled from within by Fran Hostetler. 

 

Budget YTD Summary 

As of 3/30/2021, we have spent 18% of our Shelter budget (Dept.90).  The expenses are mostly due to 

salaries.  The total shelter budget is $1,051,666.  We have spent 20% of our detention budget (Dept.91).  

Detention expenditures consists of mostly salaries. The total detention budget is $1,054,065.   

 

Projects/Issues/Challenges/Concerns 

We just concluded with school spring break.  The youth are currently attending school for the final few weeks 

of the school year.  The youth enjoyed sleeping in a little later than usual and participating in fun activities.  

Unfortunately, the weather was not 100% cooperative for daily activities outside. 

Our annual licensing review was set for March 24th but was canceled by DCF and rescheduled for April 14th. 

No current projects are underway other than focusing on “spring cleaning” and organization of our facility.   

RENO COUNTY YOUTH SERVICES 
219 West Second Ave. 

Hutchinson, Kansas  67501 
(620) 694-2500 

Fax:  (620) 694-2504 
TDD:  Kansas Relay Center  1-800-766-3777 

JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER 

JUVENILE INTAKE & ASSESSMENT 

BOB JOHNSON YOUTH SHELTER 

 



Beginning Fund Balance Revenues Expenditures Ending Balance

% Increase / 

Decrease

001 General Fund 16,224,894.45 8,579,931.96 4,589,605.89 20,215,220.52 25%

002 Dept of Aging 763,137.16 444,182.49 404,937.23 802,382.42 5%

003 Health 1,418,836.24 1,218,285.27 885,691.91 1,751,429.60 23%

004 Noxious Weed 57,791.63 40,330.24 19,168.24 78,953.63 37%

006 Special Bridge Fund 2,937,495.13 529,473.48 27,724.37 3,439,244.24 17%

007 Public Works 1,955,814.44 3,190,605.76 960,563.08 4,185,857.12 114%

008 Solid Waste 6,381,534.12 2,652,556.83 577,366.37 8,456,724.58 33%

009 Youth Shelter 674,969.49 320,220.97 411,126.76 584,063.70 -13%

013 Solid Waste Reserve 5,131,932.76 0.00 23,524.02 5,108,408.74 0%

015 Employee Benefits 4,783,891.92 4,070,739.96 2,079,235.32 6,775,396.56 42%

017 Training & Evaluation Center 25,859.08 288,760.50 271,904.42 42,715.16 65%

018 Mental Health 21,290.55 256,800.55 241,223.07 36,868.03 73%

029 Special Park & Recreation 4,409.37 5,786.80 4,000.00 6,196.17 41%

030 Special Alcohol & Drug 17,146.87 6,191.57 10,000.00 13,338.44 -22%

083 County Bond & Interest 142,252.49 214,926.58 63,265.87 293,913.20 107%

085 Noxious Weed/Capital Outlay 89,776.58 0.00 0.00 89,776.58 0%

086 Health/Capital Outlay 318,479.84 0.00 5,000.00 313,479.84 -2%

087 Historical Museum 4,719.53 104,399.68 90,689.31 18,429.90 291%

093 Special Equipment Fund 734,312.89 122,660.32 216,815.37 640,157.84 -13%

094 Special Road Fund 681,589.21 385,822.01 2,548.38 1,064,862.84 56%

097 County Equipment Reserve Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

098 Capital Improvement Program 882,206.01 354,934.81 13,876.94 1,223,263.88 39%

099 CIP Reserve Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

180 Internal Services 112,489.42 87,771.50 111,900.26 88,360.66 -21%

Grand Total: 1 Accounts $43,364,829.18 $22,874,381.28 $11,010,166.81 $55,229,043.65 27%

Fund

Reno County

Fund Activity YTD Summary Report

From Date: 1/1/2021 - To Date: 3/31/2021

 user: Shonda Arpin Pages 1 of 1  Monday, April 5, 2021

shonda.arpin
Typewritten text
AGENDAITEM #09B



2021 YTD TOTAL EXPENSE BUDGET REPORT As of 4/5/2021

Adopted YTD Remaining

Organization  Budget Commitments Transactions Budget % Used

Fund   001 - General Fund

Department   00 - Dept .00 .00 (5,455.50) 5,455.50

Department   01 - County Commission 60,800.00 .00 12,829.60 47,970.40 21%

Department   02 - County Clerk 252,916.00 .00 57,079.61 195,836.39 23%

Department   03 - County Treasurer 238,531.00 .00 43,078.56 195,452.44 18%

Department   04 - District Attorney 1,183,668.00 .00 283,564.53 900,103.47 24%

Department   05 - Register of Deeds 152,497.00 .00 33,211.45 119,285.55 22%

Department   06 - Sheriff 3,283,309.00 .00 758,114.12 2,525,194.88 23%

Department   07 - Administration 470,867.00 .00 101,968.91 368,898.09 22%

Department   08 - Unified Courts 597,003.00 .00 119,214.82 477,788.18 20%

Department   09 - Courthouse General 13,514,865.00 .00 1,089,184.57 12,425,680.43 * 8%

Department   11 - Maintenance 906,772.00 3,384.18 153,643.09 749,744.73 17%

Department   12 - Planning Zoning Utilities 79,711.00 .00 14,987.83 64,723.17 19%

Department   13 - Emergency Management 169,350.00 .00 29,679.39 139,670.61 18%

Department   14 - Jail 3,328,535.00 1,227.62 647,841.54 2,679,465.84 19%

Department   15 - Human Resources 267,096.00 .00 63,627.50 203,468.50 24%

Department   16 - Appraiser 702,014.00 .00 149,309.70 552,704.30 21%

Department   17 - Election 379,411.00 .00 103,499.90 275,911.10 27%

Department   18 - IS/GIS 683,555.00 .00 219,660.19 463,894.81 32%

Department   24 - Auto Center 154,752.00 .00 34,881.19 119,870.81 23%

Fund   001 - General Fund Totals $26,425,652.00 $4,611.80 $3,909,921.00 $22,511,119.20 ** 15%

*

** Total Percentage of budget used in the General Fund excluding Cash Carryover os 20% instead of 15%

Fund   002 - Dept of Aging

Department   20 - Depart of Aging 539,828.00 .00 88,675.08 451,152.92 16%

Department   27 - Public Transportation 1,730,580.00 .00 297,043.18 1,433,536.82 17%

Fund   002 - Dept of Aging Totals $2,270,408.00 $0.00 $385,718.26 $1,884,689.74 17%

Fund   003 - Health $3,298,244.00 $0.00 $599,654.35 $2,698,589.65 18%

Fund   004 - Noxious Weed $129,868.00 $0.00 $18,831.93 $111,036.07 15%

Fund   006 - Special Bridge Fund $2,750,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,750,000.00 0%

Fund   007 - Public Works $6,516,799.00 $46,490.87 $594,711.66 $5,875,596.47 9%

Fund   008 - Solid Waste $8,737,830.00 $34,894.11 $491,681.71 $8,211,254.18 6%

Fund   009 - YOUTH SHELTER

Department   90 - Youth Shelter 1,051,666.00 .00 189,139.16 862,526.84 18%

Department   91 - Juv Detention 1,054,065.00 .00 210,131.09 843,933.91 20%

Department   92 - Grant Misc. 7,000.00 .00 583.80 6,416.20 8%

Fund   009 - YOUTH SHELTER Totals $2,112,731.00 $0.00 $399,854.05 $1,712,876.95 19%

Fund   013 - Solid Waste Reserve $5,800,782.00 $840.27 $5,266.25 $5,794,675.48 0%

Fund   015 - Employee Benefits $11,312,000.00 $0.00 $2,012,392.50 $9,299,607.50 18%

Fund   017 - Training & Evaluation Center $510,000.00 $0.00 $260,000.00 $250,000.00 51%

Fund   018 - Mental Health $452,025.00 $0.00 $230,025.00 $222,000.00 51%

Fund   029 - Special Park & Recreation $10,408.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,408.00 0%

Fund   030 - Special Alcohol & Drug $27,386.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $17,386.00 37%

Fund   083 - County Bond & Interest $529,756.00 $0.00 $62,086.00 $467,670.00 12%

Fund   085 - Noxious Weed/Capital Outlay $109,776.00 $0.00 $0.00 $109,776.00 0%

Fund   086 - Health/Capital Outlay $336,041.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $331,041.00 1%

Fund   087 - Historical Museum $185,000.00 $0.00 $90,000.00 $95,000.00 49%

Fund   093 - Special Equipment Fund $1,005,500.00 $0.00 $216,002.85 $789,497.15 21%

Fund   094 - Special Road Fund $755,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $755,000.00 0%

Fund   098 - Capital Improvement Program $1,062,000.00 $0.00 $5,562.50 $1,056,437.50 1%

Includes $6,893,800 Cash Carryover.  Percentage of Courthouse General budget used excluding the cash carryover is 16% 

instead of 8%.

 Run by Shonda Arpin on 04/05/2021 09:45:14 AM Page 1 of 2



2021 YTD TOTAL EXPENSE BUDGET REPORT As of 4/5/2021

Fund   180 - Internal Services

Department   11 - Maintenance 321,568.00 12,040.21 43,399.64 266,128.15 13%

Department   24 - Auto Center 428,000.00 .00 30,377.67 397,622.33 7%

Fund   180 - Internal Services Totals $749,568.00 $12,040.21 $73,777.31 $663,750.48 10%

Grand Totals $75,086,774.00 $98,877.26 $9,370,485.37 $65,617,411.37 12%

 Run by Shonda Arpin on 04/05/2021 09:45:14 AM Page 2 of 2


	~BOCC ONLY 04-13-2021 AGENDA.pdf (p.1-2)
	03A1 Proclamation Victims Rights Week 2021.pdf (p.3)
	03A2 Proclamation Week of the Young Child 2021.pdf (p.4)
	03A3 ProclamationChildAbusePrevention.pdf (p.5)
	07B CommCorrAdvBd.pdf (p.6)
	07C SW Tractor Purchase.pdf (p.7-20)
	07D PW Resolution - Maximum Weight of Vehicles.pdf (p.21-38)
	07E PW OSOW Haul Loads Policy Adoption.pdf (p.39-46)
	07F PW Utility Poles and Wireless Support Structures Policy Revision.pdf (p.47-54)
	08B PZ Case 2021-02.pdf (p.55-83)
	08C PW Agree 69th Bridge over Cow Creek.pdf (p.84-93)
	08D PW Agree Wilson Bridge over Cow Creek.pdf (p.94-103)
	08E SO - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.104)
	08F CWECS Proposed DRAFT - 02-09-21.pdf (p.105-118)
	09A Department Reports.pdf (p.119-139)
	Aging Transport - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.1-2)
	Appraiser - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.3-4)
	Auto - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.5)
	Clerk - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.6)
	Comm Corr - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.7)
	Communications-March 2021 Report.pdf (p.8)
	Dist Atty - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.9)
	EM - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.10)
	Health - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.11)
	HR - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.12)
	IT - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.13)
	Maint - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.14)
	Public Works - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.15-16)
	ROD - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.17)
	SO - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.18)
	Solid Waste - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.19)
	Treasurer - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.20)
	Yth Srvcs - March 2021 Report.pdf (p.21)

	09B Budget~Financial Reports.pdf (p.140-142)
	2021 03 Fund Activity YTD Summary.pdf (p.1)
	2021 03 YTD Total Expense Budget Report.pdf (p.2-3)


